
 

 

 

7 May 2021 

 

Mr Philip Crawford 
Chairperson 
Independent Liquor and Gaming Authority 
4 Parramatta Square 
12 Darcy Street 
Parramatta NSW  2150 

 

Confidential  

Dear Mr Crawford 

Crown Suitability 

I am writing to further matters discussed at our 4 May meeting.   

We were grateful for the opportunity to update you on Crown’s reform progress.  Very substantial 

reform has been implemented across the business since the Bergin inquiry and that pace of reform 

will continue under a renewed Board and leadership team.  The breadth of reform delivered to date 

is such that it is our view that Crown should now be considered a suitable person to give effect to 

the restricted gaming licence.    

(a) Appointment and scope of Independent Monitor  

Crown supports the proposed appointment of an independent monitor to provide assurance to the 

Authority with respect to elements of Crown’s remediation plan.   We understand it is intended that 

this will be a tri-partite appointment among the Authority, Crown and the independent monitor.  

Central to Crown’s remediation plan is the strengthening of the company’s AML/CTF risk and 

compliance framework and addressing shortcomings identified during the Bergin inquiry.   Given the 

nature and breadth of the AML/CTF related projects it is Crown’s view that the independent monitor 

should assess the adequacy of the implementation of these projects.  This is important assurance 

work that will give both the Authority and Crown comfort about the adequacy and effectiveness of 

these programs.   

Crown supports the role of the independent monitor to also review certain non-AML projects in the 

remediation plan but the scope of this review should be to provide assurance to the Authority that 

the applicable project has been completed or that there is a satisfactory plan in place to complete 
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the project.  We have proposed in Schedule 1 a high-level scope of work for the independent 

monitor that contemplates this approach.   

(b) Financial Crime 

It is our view that Crown’s AML/CTF compliance framework currently has the foundational 

components in place to support a positive assessment of suitability now.   This view is independently 

supported by phase 1 of the Deloitte forensic work, a copy of which has been provided to the 

Authority, which assessed the controls Crown has in place with respect to the Patron Accounts, as 

raised in the Bergin report.  Deloitte concluded that Crown’s controls are operating effectively and 

recommended further automation to ensure sustainability.  

We are working with Deloitte to provide a preliminary report on phase 2 of its forensic engagement.    

This stream of work is focussed on identifying historical instances of potential money laundering. 

While it is important to uncover historical non-compliance, the findings from this phase of Deloitte’s 

work will relate to the past, rather than the AML/CTF compliance framework that Crown has in place 

today. This lookback work by Deloitte in phase 2 will not address or identify issues relating to 

potential contamination or non-compliance in current patron accounts and, in our view, it should 

not delay an assessment of suitability.  It is Crown’s view that the Authority’s consideration of 

suitability should be based on our current Patron Account controls at our member-only Sydney 

gaming operation, which is something that can be assessed by the independent monitor with the 

assistance of work already performed by Deloitte in phase 1 of its engagement.   

Finally, with respect to financial crime, we discussed the growth in the size and quality of Crown’s 

AML/CTF team at our meeting.  I thought it was worth confirming our discussion as it demonstrates 

in clear and practical terms Crown’s commitment to reform and improvement in this area.  Since 1 

January 2020, our internal team has increased from five people to 16.  Four additional roles have 

been approved and are nearing the end of the recruitment process.  This represents a 400% increase 

in financial crime staffing and is sufficient to support foundational suitability.    

(c) Recovery of Inquiry Costs & Supervisory Levy 

We confirm that Crown has agreed to pay: 

(a) $12.5 million in satisfaction of the Authority's total costs of the Bergin Inquiry. We propose 

paying $6.5m by 30 June 2021, $3m by 30 September 2021, and $3m by 31 December 2021; 

(b) a casino supervisory levy of $5m per year in respect of Crown's Sydney premises.  We 

propose to pay $5m representing the levy for FY2021 on a payment schedule to be agreed. 

Thereafter, we propose to pay $5m plus CPI in quarterly instalments, representing the 
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supervisory levy for FY2022. The levy for FY2023 and onwards will be determined following 

further consultation with the Authority. 

Crown has made representations to the Authority on 26 April 2021 in relation to the Inquiry's costs 

of the investigation of the Melco/CPH transaction.   

(d) Culture Reform 

Crown is in the midst of a significant culture reform and uplift program.  That program has delivered 

a noticeable change in the ‘tone from the top’ and company-wide expectations have been reset in 

relation to the effective identification and management of risk.  This is a comprehensive piece of 

work that is well underway and will be a core responsibility of Crown’s new CEO and Chief People & 

Culture Officer.   

The importance of culture in Crown’s reform program is reinforced by the engagement of Deloitte to 

conduct a comprehensive organisational culture review.  This work will be delivered over four 

phases with the ultimate objective being a refreshed and clearly articulated target culture that aligns 

Crown’s values, strategic direction and risk appetite.  More detail on this phased approach is 

available in our remediation plan.  

We would be grateful for the opportunity to take you through this work on culture reform when we 

next meet.   

(e) Review of s142 Agreements  

Crown supports a process designed to simplify its agreements under section 142 of the Casino 

Control Act 1992.  Our support of this process is subject to agreement with the Authority that the 

process will examine simplification only and will not impact the commercial benefits secured by 

Crown under the agreements.  On the basis that we have this agreement, we will contribute up to 

$50,560 to the cost of this work.  Crown and the Authority will need to agree any costs or work 

beyond this initial phase.   

(f) Entitlement to Compensation  

Crown has provided assurance to the Authority that it will not seek compensation in respect of work 

that it undertakes, or proposes to undertake, to satisfy the Authority of its suitability to hold a casino 

licence.  

The Authority has sought further assurances from Crown that it will not claim compensation in 

relation to rectification steps made under the VIP Gaming Management Agreement, or legislative 

changes made in response to recommendations from the Bergin Report.  Crown is open to 
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